IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX

SEP 23 1999

CLERK, SURBENIE COURT

CASE NO. 96,587

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

GINO KALICI,

Respondent.

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH

Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CELIA TERENZIO

Assistant Attorney General Bureau Chief, West Palm Beach Florida Bar No. 656879

LESLIE T. CAMPBELL

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0066631 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401-2299 Telephone: (561) 688-7759

Counsel for Petitioner

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, the State of Florida, was the prosecution in the trial court and Appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal below. Petitioner will be referred to herein as "Petitioner" or the "State". Respondent, Gino Kalici, was the defendant in the trial court and Appellant in the District Court below. Respondent and will be referred to herein as "Respondent" or "Defendant". Reference to the Appendix will be by the symbol "A".

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS (Limited to the issue of jurisdiction)

Petitioner seeks discretionary review of the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Kalici v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1714 (Fla. 4th DCA July 21, 1999) (A 1). As found by the Fourth District Court of Appeal ("Fourth District"), on November 17, 1986, Respondent entered a guilty plea to delivery of a controlled substance, was placed on two years probation, and ordered to pay a fine. Id. Such probation terminated in January 1988. Id.

On March 4, 1998, after deportation proceedings were initiated by the Immigration and Naturalization Service and approximately <u>twelve years</u> after having entered his guilty plea, Respondent filed a Petition for Writ of Error Coram Nobis. <u>Id</u>. In this pleading he alleged he was facing deportation and claimed the plea should be withdraw because the <u>trial court</u> had not informed him of possible deportation consequences. <u>Id</u>.

Without ordering a response from the State or, requiring the State's attendance at either hearing on the matter, the petition and request for rehearing were considered and denied by the trial court. (A 2, pgs. 10, 27-37). These decisions were based upon the facts that at the time Respondent entered his plea, the trial court was not required to inform defendants about deportation consequences, the matter was not cognizable under Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.850, and because of the twelve year gap

between the plea and the petition, the State most likely would not be able to re-try the Respondent. (A 2, pgs. 27-37). Later, the trial court reasoned:

I don't think it can be raised on a 1986 case at this point where that is not the law. There is no requirement, all time limits have expired, the sentence is over with, everything is done. It is 12 years later, and the defendant is being deported. I don't think he has any legal basis to withdraw the plea.

(A 2, pg. 47). Defense Counsel admitted that before Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure, 3.172 was amended, the trial court was not required to inform a defendant of the potential deportation consequences associated with a guilty plea. (A 2, pg. 47).

The Fourth District relied upon this Court's recent decision of <u>Wood v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly S240 (Fla. May 27, 1999) in reversing and remanding the cause for an evidentiary hearing. The State's Motion for Rehearing was denied on August 19, 1999. Notice to invoke this Court's jurisdiction was filed on September 17, 1999.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Under Article V, section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution, jurisdiction lies with this Court to review Kalici v. State. 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1714 (Fla. 4th DCA July 21, 1999) because the Fourth District misapplied Wood v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly S240 (Fla. May 27, 1999), and in so doing, effectively overruled McCrav v. State, 699 So. 2d 1366 (Fla. 1997). In Wood, defendants were given two years from May 27, 1999 to file claims "traditionally cognizable under coram nobis." Wood, 24 Fla. L. Weekly at S241.

The Fourth District misapplied Wood in two respects. First, it disregarded the doctrine of laches where more than 12 years elapsed between Respondent's plea and petition, during which time, records were destroyed, thereby, prejudicing the State. Wood was misapplied when new life was breathed into Respondent's There is no challenge to his plea colloguy regarding deportation. entitlement to relief because the plea was entered in 1986 before the amendment to Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.172(c)(8) and Respondent did not use due diligence to investigate any potential claim after the amendment. This Court has jurisdiction to determine whether the doctrine of laches may be applied to defendants seeking claims traditionally cognizable under coram nobis and whether relief is available to aliens who entered pleas before Rule 3.172(c)(8) was amended but were not informed of deportation consequences.

ARGUMENT

JURISDICTION LIES WITH THIS COURT BECAUSE THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL MISAPPLIED WOOD V. STATE, 24 FLA. L. WEEKLY \$240 (FLA. MAY 27, 1999).

This Court has jurisdiction because the Fourth District misapplied <u>Wood v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly S240 (Fla. May 27, 1999). <u>Pender v. State</u>, 700 So. 2d 664, 665 (Fla. 1997) (finding jurisdiction where district court misapplied a decision of the Florida Supreme Court); <u>Armstrong v. State</u>, 656 So.2d 455 (Fla. 1995). Also, jurisdiction was accepted in <u>Gregersen v. State</u>, 699 so. 2d 1366 (Fla. 4th DCA), <u>rev. granted</u>, 728 So. 2d 205 (Fla. 1998) in which the Fourth District recognized the doctrine of laches operated to bar coram nobis relief.

Recently, the use and time limits to be applied to writs of error coram nobis were addressed. Wood, 24 Fla. L. Weekly at 5240. A new two year time limit was announced, commencing on May 27, 1999, for those defendants convicted prior to the issuance of Wood, within which to file "claims traditionally cognizable under coram nobis." Id. at S241. However, nowhere in the opinion does the Court reject or abrogate the effect of laches on such petitions or overrule McCrav v. State. 699 So. 2d 1366, 1368 (Fla. 1997). Further, the Court made it clear that coram nobis could not be used to breath new life into barred claims. Wood, 24 Fla. L. Weekly at S241. Yet, the Fourth District has disregarded the traditional doctrine of laches and has permitted the Respondent to breath new

live into a claim where no basis for relief existed. As such, <u>Wood</u> has been misapplied.

This Court has **Gregersen** for review. In **Greaersen**, the Fourth District recognized the use of laches to bar relief in a coram nobis proceeding where more than ten years had elapsed since the defendant's adjudication and records had been destroyed. While a similar situation exists here, the Fourth District refused to apply the doctrine of laches. Instead, it used Wood to grant Respondent an evidentiary hearing. Yet, in McCray v. State, 699 So. 2d 1366, 1368 (Fla. 1997) this Court recognized that "the doctrine of laches has been applied to bar a collateral relief proceeding when, from the face of the petition, it is obvious that the state has been manifestly prejudiced and no reason for an extraordinary delay has been provided." While addressing how laches applied in habeas corpus petitions this Court concluded the petition "is presumed to be the result of an unreasonable delay and to prejudice the state if the petition has been filed more than five years from the date the petitioner's conviction became final." Id. at 1368. See also, Anderson v. Singletary, 688 So. 2d 462, 463 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997) (a petition, filed 15 years after finalized appeal, is barred by laches where records were destroyed).

In the instant case, it has been <u>more than.12 years</u> since Respondent entered his plea on November 17, 1986; records have been destroyed and memories have faded. (A 2 pg. 5). The 12 year delay

was recognized by the trial judge when he stated:

I see enormous disadvantages to the State. It may not be prosecutable. The State does not have anything anymore. It is 12 years ago. Where they have destroyed things on this because it was so long gone.

(A 2, pg. 37). The trial court recognized the traditional doctrine of laches in denying the petition for error coram nobis, but the Fourth District ordered an evidentiary hearing. This Court should accept jurisdiction and determine that the doctrine of laches is a viable basis for denying a petition for coram nobis. The Fourth District's blind adherence to the May 27, 1999 date for the commencement of a new two year limit announced in <u>Wood</u> certainly was not intended to apply in cases such as this where records have been destroyed and the delay is presumed prejudicial to the State.

In addition to its failure to recognize that the doctrine of laches was not abandoned by Wood, the Fourth District erred by allowing new life to be breathed into the Respondent's claim. This is in contravention of the dictates of Wood where it was stated, "coram nobis claims cannot breath life into postconviction claims that have previously been held barred." Wood, 24 Fla. L. Weekly at S241 (citing Vonia v. State, 680 So. 2d 438, 439 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996)). Additionally, this Court held that "[b]y extending rule 3.850 relief to noncustodial claimants, we do not narrow in any way the relief heretofore available to defendants under coram nobis." Wood, 24 Fla. L. Weekly S241(emphasis added). Implicit with this

statement is the corollary that the Court would not expand the relief available before Wood.

Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.172(c)(8), which now requires the trial court to inform a defendant of the possible immigration consequences of the plea, became effective January 1, 1989. Prior to that date, the trial judge did not have to inform defendants of possible deportation. If Respondent had a potential claim, any motion to withdraw the plea should have been brought within two years of the effective date of the amendment. By failing to bring a motion within that time frame, Respondent did not use due diligence to investigate or challenge the plea. Wood, 24 Fla. L. Weekly S241; Hallman v. State, 371 So. 2d 482, 485 (Fla. 1979) ("it must appear that defendant or his counsel could have known [of the alleged facts] by the use of diligence."). Moreover, because Respondent enjoyed the benefits of probation, he should not now be permitted to complain. Cf. Trapp.v. State, 711 So.2d 138

requirement that judges advise defendants of deportation issues.

Medina v. State, 711 So. 2d 256, 257 (Fla. 3d DCA 1998)

(defendants who entered pleas before January 1, 1989 were not required to be informed of deportation consequences, thus, no coram nobis relief available). Deportation consequences are collateral issues for which postconviction relief is not available. Fundora v. State, 513 So. 2d 122 (Fla. 1987); State v. Ginebra, 511 So. 2d 960 (Fla. 1987). See, Peart v. State, 705 so. 2d 1059, 1062 (Fla. 3d DCA) (en banc), rev. granted, 722 So. 2d 193 (Fla. 1998). Under the 1986 version of Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.172, the trial judge did not have to inform Respondent of deportation consequences, therefore, he has no basis for relief.

(Fla. 4th DCA 1998) (defendant may not wait until revocation to challenge condition of probation); Stroble v. State, 689 So. 2d 1089, 1090 (Fla. 5th DCA), ("One who takes advantage of an invalid sentence until he violates community control is estopped to assert the invalidity of his original sentence"), rev. denied, 697 So. 2d 512 (Fla. 1997); Gaskins v, State, 607 So. 2d 475, 476 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) (once a defendant has enjoyed the benefits of probation without challenging the terms, he is barred from complaining about those in an appeal from an order revoking probation), disapproved on other urounds, State v. Powell, 703 So.2d 444 (Fla.1997). Hence, the doctrine of laches should apply because there is no basis for the inordinate delay in seeking relief. Clearly, even under Wood's new time limit, relief was not warranted in 1986 nor today. The Fourth District misapplied Wood and McCray when it ordered an evidentiary hearing.

Because the Fourth District failed to recognize the traditional doctrine of laches, and because it breathed new life into a claim where relief was never available, it misapplied this Court's decisions in <u>Wood</u> and <u>McCray</u>. Jurisdiction should be accepted to rectify this error and announce clearly that the doctrine of laches remains a proper defense to claims for coram nobis relief, and that the new time limit announced in <u>Wood</u> cannot be used to form a basis for a claim which never existed.

CONCLUSION

Wherefore, based on the foregoing, Respondent requests respectfully this Court ACCEPT jurisdiction.