IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 96,587

FILED DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX

_ NOV 1 8 1999

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

GINO KALICI,

Respondent.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

NEAL A. DUPREE, ESQ. Law Offices of Neal A. Dupree 440 South Andrews Avenue Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301 (954) 766-8872 Florida Bar No. 311545

Counsel for Respondent

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

Respondent, GINO KALICI, states that to his knowledge the following individuals or entities have an interest in the outcome of this case:

Honorable Arthur Birken, Circuit Court Judge

Honorable Robert B. Carney, Circuit Court Judge

Neal A. Dupree, Esq., Attorney for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The following symbols, abbreviation and references will be used in this instant cause:

The term "Respondent" shall refer to Gino Kalici.

The term "Petitioner" or "State" shall refer to the Petitioner.

 ${}^{\text{II}}R^{,\text{II}}$ shall refer to the record on appeal to the Fourth District Court of Appeal (Attached as Exhibit 2 of Petitioner's Initial Brief on Jurisdiction).

All other citations will be self-explanatory or will be otherwise explained.

STATEMENT OF FONT

The font is 12 point courier, not proportionately spaced.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent, Gino Kalici, requests this Court to deny jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Kalici v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1714 (Fla. 4th DCA July 21, 1999). The Fourth District found that Respondent, a resident alien, pled guilty to delivery of a controlled substance on November 17, 1986. Id. Respondent was sentenced to two years probation and was required to pay a fine. Id. Respondent successfully completed probation in January, 1988.

In December 1997, the Immigration and Naturalization service arrested Respondent and initiated deportation proceedings against him as a result of the 1986 conviction. Id. Respondent filed a Petition for Writ of Error Coram Nobis on March 4, 1998. petition, Respondent requests that his plea be withdrawn because the trial court failed to inform him that a guilty plea could affect his immigration status, and, could possibly result in his Not only did the trial court fail to inform deportation. Respondent of the adverse consequences of his plea, his trial counsel affirmatively misadvised Respondent that he could not be deported since he was not receiving jail time. Respondent's counsel also failed to request a judicial recommendation against (R. 16, 17) . deportation.

The trial court denied Respondent's petition on the basis that a Writ of Error Coram Nobis was not viable because it had been untimely filed. (R. 48). The trial court ruled that the two (2) year limitation set in Fla. Rule Crim. P. 3.850 also applied to Coram Nobis petitions. (R. 36, 47, and 48).

On appeal, the Fourth District, relying on this Court's decision in <u>Wood v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly \$240 (Fla. May 27, 1999), reversed the trial court's order and remanded for an evidentiary hearing. Petitioner's motion for rehearing was denied on August 19, 1999. On September 17, 1999, petitioner filed its notice to invoke this Court's jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Court does not have jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Kalici v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1714 (Fla. 4th DCA July 21, 1999) because Wood v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly 5240 (Fla. May 27, 1999) was not misapplied. Fourth District did not ignore the doctrine of laches, in fact, it recognized its past decisions involving the doctrine and determined under the plain language of Wood that Respondent has two years from the filing of <u>Wood</u> to file a claim traditionally cognizable under coram nobis. Kalici at D1714. Furthermore, the Fourth District did not breathe new life into a postconviction claim which has been previously held barred. Respondent presented his claim, pertaining to the failure of the trial court to advise him of the consequences of his plea and the affirmative misadvice of his original counsel regarding the same plea, for the first time in his Motion for Writ of Error Coram Nobis. There was no previous ruling based on procedural time limits or the merits of the motion prior to the instant decision, Respondent in no way used coram nobis as a means of circumventing the procedural requirements of other collateral Because the Fourth District's decision is consistent with avenues. Wood, no conflict with the law as enunciated by this Court exists. jurisdiction does not lie with this Court. Thus,

ARGUMENT

THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL APPLIED THIS COURT'S DECISION IN WOOD V. STATE, 24 FLA. L. WEEKLY S240 (FLA. MAY 27, 1999), PROPERLY, THEREFORE THIS COURT DOES NOT HAVE JURISDICTION.

Contrary to the State's assertion, this Court does not have jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fourth District court of Appeal in Kalici v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1714 (Fla. 4th DCA July 21, 1999). Pursuant to Article V, $\S 3$ (b) (3) of the Florida Constitution this Court may review the decision of a district court of appeal where that decision is in direct conflict with a decision of this Court on the same question of law. In the instant case, the Fourth District properly applied this Court's decision in wood v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly S240 (Fla. May 27, 1999).

In <u>Wood v. State</u> this Court held that writs of error coram nobis are subject to the two year time limitation delineated in Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850 and determined that "all defendants adjudicated prior to this opinion shall have two years from the filing date within which to file claims traditionally cognizable under coram nobis." <u>Id</u>. at S241. As the Fourth District indicated, Respondent falls into this category of defendants who were adjudicated prior to the <u>Wood</u> opinion. As such, Respondent would be entitled to file a claim traditionally cognizable under coram nobis.

The State contends that the Fourth District's application of

<u>Wood</u> was incorrect for two reasons. First, the State believes the Fourth District ignored the doctrine of laches, where both the Fourth District and this Court have applied the doctrine to bar coram nobis claims in the past. In support of this position, the State cites <u>Gregersen v. State</u>, 714 So. 2d 1195 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998) and <u>McCray v. State</u>, 699 So. 2d 1366 (Fla. 1997), both of which are clearly decided prior to <u>Wood</u>.

The State overlooks the fact that the Fourth District did take into consideration the doctrine of laches and how it has applied the doctrine in previous cases involving writs of error coram nobis. The Fourth District specifically stated:

This court has repeatedly held petitions for writs of error coram nobis are time barred by laches if filed more than two years after judgment and sentence have become final. See State V. Elise, 727 So. 2d 1030 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999); Gabriel v. State, 723 So. 2d 1030 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998); State v. Taylor, 722 So. 2d 890 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998).

<u>Kalici v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1714 (Fla. 4th DCA July 21, 1999). However, the Fourth District made clear that the language of <u>Wood</u> clearly affords Respondent the opportunity to present a coram nobis claim regardless of the previous application of laches.

The premise that the Fourth District's decision is consistent with <u>Wood</u> is further evidenced by the similarities between Respondent's circumstances and the facts of the <u>Wood</u> case. n <u>wood</u>, the petitioner was seeking to set aside a plea more than ten years after such plea was entered. Likewise, Respondent's writ of error coram nobis seeks to vacate a plea approximately twelve years old, a similar time frame as that in <u>Wood</u>. Also, both Wood and

Respondent entered pleas based on misrepresentations of the law by their attorneys. Therefore, similar problems regarding records and possible prejudice to the State would exist in both cases due to the time that has elapsed. Yet, this Court concluded, without any discussion regarding laches, that the petitioner in Wood was "not time barred since this Court is only now applying this limitation period to writs of error coram not at \$241. Based on these facts and this Court's conclusion, it is evident that the Fourth District properly considered its previous rulings pertaining to the doctrine of laches and properly applied Wood v. State.

Additionally, both McCray v. State, 699 So. 2d 1366 (Fla. 1997) and Gregersen v. State, 714 So. 2d 1195 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998) In both of those cases are distinguishable from Respondent's case. the petitioner was unable to provide any reason for the delay in filing a coram nobis claim. However, Respondent has asserted in a sworn statement that he did not proceed sooner with the writ for error coram nobis because he was not made aware of the basis of the writ until deportation proceedings were begun against him in 1997. From the time his plea was entered in 1986, Respondent was under the false impression that he could not be deported as a result of his plea. This perception was created by not only the failure of the trial court to inform Respondent that his resident alien status the affirmative affected by the plea, but bу be misrepresentation of Respondent's original counsel that he could not be deported because he was not receiving jail time. All of these factors were presented to the Fourth District

for its determination of Respondent's appeal. (<u>See</u> Initial Brief of Appellant Gino Kalici).

The State's second assertion is that the Fourth District erred by allowing new life to be breathed into Respondent's claim. State explains that this error is in "contravention of the dictates (Brief of Petitioner on Jurisdiction, p. 7). this Court explained that "coram nobis claims cannot breath life into postconviction claims which have previously been held barred." Wood at S241 (citing Vonia v. State, 680 So. 2d 438, 439 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996)), The State has seemingly misinterpreted this language in arguing that Respondent's claim would not have been viable in any postconviction proceeding because he failed to use due diligence in investigating and filing the claim, because no relief is available under Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.172 since it went into effect after his plea and because he should not be permitted to enjoy the As is benefits of probation and now be permitted to complain. this language addresses from this Court's opinion, petitioners who have already had a determination of their claims under an alternative postconviction remedy such as Fla. R. Crim. P. This Court, citing Richardson v. State, 546 So. 2d 1037, 1038-39 (Fla. 1989), expresses the intent that writs of error coram Wood at S241. nobis can not be used to circumvent Rule 3.850. Therefore, the Fourth District did not breath life into a claim which has been previously held barred since Respondent has not filed any postconviction pleadings prior to his petition for writ of error coram nobis, nor has any postconviction pleading been previously ruled upon. Respondent's Motion for Writ of Error Coram Nobis is his first avenue for seeking postconviction relief,

State's misinterpretation of Notwithstanding the Respondent's petition for writ of error coram nobis establishes a The State is correct that Fla. R. Crim. P. basis for relief. 3.172(c)(8), which requires judges presiding at plea colloquies to inform the defendant of the consequence that his plea may subject him to deportation if he is not a United States citizen, became effective in January 1989. The change in the format for conducting a plea colloguy constitutes a fundamental departure in the law to address the unfairness of allowing deportation proceedings against defendants who are not advised about the immigration consequences of their changes of plea. Although this change occurred after Respondent entered his plea, Due Process and fundamental fairness allowed to change his plea. Respondent be require that

Additionally, not only did the court presiding over Respondent's plea colloquy fail to advise him of the immigration consequences of his plea, Respondent's counsel at the plea colloquy affirmatively misadvised Respondent that he could not be deported.

See State v. Sallato, 519 So. 2d 605 (Fla. 1988) (holding that a hearing should have been conducted by the trial court when an attorney affirmatively misadvised his client about the consequences of his change of plea). Respondent's counsel then failed to seek a recommendation by the sentencing judge to prevent Respondent's deportation. See Dugart v. State, 578 So. 2d 789 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991) (holding that a defendant should be allowed to withdraw his

plea when a defendant received ineffective assistance when his attorney failed to request a recommendation against deportation from the sentencing judge).

The State contends that in failing to file a motion to withdraw plea within two years of the effective date of the amendment to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.172(c)(8), "Respondent did not use due diligence to investigate and challenge the plea." (Brief of Petitioner on Jurisdiction, p. 8). As the State properly cites, according to Wood, Fla. L. Weekly at S241 and Hallman v. State, 371 So. 2d 482, 485 (Fla. 1979), "it must appear that defendant or his counsel could not have known [of the alleged facts1 by the use of diligence." Here, once the facts upon which Respondent bases his motion were known to him, Respondent was timely in filing his Motion for Writ of error Coram Nobis. At the time the change in Rule 3.172 occurred, Respondent had completed his probation and no longer had counsel. Respondent had no way of knowing there was a change in the procedure for plea colloquies, nor would he have any reason to believe that his attorney had misadvised him regarding the possibility of deportation. It was not until deportation proceedings were initiated against him in December of 1997, that he had any knowledge of the consequences of his plea. Respondent then filed his motion on March 4, 1998, well within the two year period from discovery of the facts giving rise to his motion.

Finally, the State makes the argument that "because the Respondent enjoyed the benefits of probation, he should not be permitted to complain." (Initial Brief of Petitioner on

Jurisdiction, p. 8). Each of the cases cited by the State involves defendants who received probation, then upon revocation challenged the conditions of the probation. The Respondent points out that these facts are not similar to the instant circumstances, nor are any of these cases relevant. Respondent is not challenging the conditions of his probation. Respondent successfully completed probation, and here challenges whether he was afforded due process and fundamental fairness when he was not informed, in fact misinformed, of the significant consequences of his plea.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal did not misapply this Court's decision in Wood v. State. In fact, the Fourth District considered its previous decisions in which the doctrine of laches was applied and properly determined that the language in Wood allows Respondent the opportunity to present his claims at an evidentiary hearing. Respondent's Motion for Writ of Error Coram Nobis is not an attempt to circumvent any previous postconviction ruling, since there has been no prior ruling. Thus, the Fourth District has not breathed life into a postconviction claim which has previously been held barred. Because the requirements of Article V, §3(b) (3) are not met, jurisdiction does not lie with this Court.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Respondent, GINO KALICI, through undersigned counsel, respectfully requests that this Court deny jurisdiction.

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been provided by U.S. Mail to Celia Terenzio,

Assistant Attorney General, Bureau Chief and Leslie T. Campbell, Assistant Attorney General, 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd., Suite 300, West Palm Beach, FL 33401-2299 this 17 day of November 1999.